

ODETTE COMMERCE SOCIETY CONSTITUTION

Updated February 28th, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1.	Commerce Society
Article 2.	Mission, Values, and Vision Statement
Article 3.	The Aims and Purpose of the Society
Article 4.	Membership Requirements
Article 5.	Rights and Privileges of Members
Article 6.	Meetings
Article 7.	Voting Procedures
Article 8.	Executive Requirements
Article 9.	Executive Positions
Article 10.	Duties and Responsibilities of Council Member
Article 11.	Elections and Procedures
Article 12.	Impeachment and Executive Firing Procedure
Article 13.	Council Member Firing Procedure
Article 14.	Member Resignation
Article 15.	Conference and Competition Funding Policy
Article 16.	Club Funding
Article 17.	Faculty Advisor
Article 18.	Society Constitution
Article 19.	Club Ratification



Article 1. Commerce Society

1.1. The name of this Society shall be the "Odette Commerce Society", hereafter referred to as the "Society".

Article 2. Mission, Values, and Vision Statement

2.1. Mission Statement

"To encourage the perpetual success of students and communities, through student leaders who support empowering students and community service projects."

2.2. Values Statement

The Odette Commerce Society identity is built on the values of integrity, trustworthiness, and fellowship with each other and the students we serve. We stand for candid, compassionate, straightforward communication and will seek and support events that create congenial situations in which all Odette students can experience the pleasure of change and personal growth.

2.3. Vision Statement

"To provide a supportive atmosphere of collaboration and opportunity, expanding the networks of Odette students, and to develop their personal and professional skill sets to enhance their Odette experience"

Article 3. The Aims and Purpose of the Society

- 3.1. To promote and protect the general interest and welfare of its members and to broaden student interest in the field of Business Administration;
- 3.2. To promote close student/faculty cooperation and act as a medium of communication between students and faculty when applicable or necessary;
- 3.3. To encourage harmonious working relationships between the students of the Society and the Odette School of Business, and the students from different faculties of the University of Windsor;
- 3.4. To encourage the appreciation of and the development of both the social and academic activities pertinent to both the University of Windsor and the business world;



3.5. To work in conjunction with UWSA, the representative body of all students at the University of Windsor.

Article 4. Membership Requirement

- 4.1. Members shall consist of all full-time and part-time University of Windsor students registered in the following Bachelor of Commerce Programs of Study:
 - 4.1.1. B.COMM (Honours Business Administration)
 - 4.1.2. B.COMM (Honours Business Administration) Coop;
 - 4.1.3. B.COMM (Honours Business Administration/Economics);
 - 4.1.4. B.COMM (Honours Business Administration/Computer Science);
 - 4.1.5. B.COMM (Honours Business Administration/Computer Science) Coop;
 - 4.1.6. BCOMM (Honours Business Administration/Mathematics);
 - 4.1.7. BCOMM (Honours Business Administration/Women's & Gender Studies).

4.2. Membership Fees

4.2.1. Members must pay the prescribed per semester fee, payable to the University of Windsor at the time of registration.

Article 5. Rights and Privileges of Members

- 5.1. Members shall be eligible to vote at the annual election and by-election of the designated Executives of the Society;
- 5.2. Members shall be eligible to hold any position on the Executive of the Society, so long as all specific requirements have been met;
- 5.3. Members shall be able to gain access to any Society records and files in the presence of an Executive. In the case of financial records, that Executive must be one of the following: The President, the Executive Vice-President, or the Vice President of Finance.

Article 6. Meetings

- 6.1. Both General and Executive meetings shall be led by the Commerce Society's President
- 6.2. All full council meetings slideshows must be posted on the official Commerce Society's Website;
- 6.3. Council meetings are called by the Society Executive team. There must be at least one meeting every month, aside from December and April;
- 6.4. Executive meetings will be held weekly on a predetermined day and time, which will be set at the



beginning of each semester based on availability of the Executives;

6.5. A Special General Meeting may be called by the Society President at any time for any purpose listed in UWSA By-Law 40.02, with at least 14 days' notice to the Society's membership.

Article 7. Voting Procedures

- 7.1. Quorum shall consist of ½ voting members for Executive meetings. In case of an emergency situation (where a meeting cannot be held), the decision can be voted on by e-mail within a 24-hour period. At the next Executive meeting, this decision must be ratified by the executives of the society.
- 7.2. Quorum for General meetings shall be a ratio of three full council members for every executive in attendance, in accordance with Article 4.1;
- 7.3. In order to call a vote, a voting member must put forward a motion. The same motion must then be seconded by another voting member (seconding a motion does not constitute a vote in favor of the motion);
- 7.4. Unless otherwise specified, a motion requires a two-thirds quorum majority to pass;
- 7.5. In the event that "Co-Executives" are appointed, at Executive meetings, the portfolio may retain individual votes.

Article 8. Executive Requirements

- 8.1. All Executive Members must satisfy the following:
 - 8.1.1. Shall be a member of the Odette Commerce Society as defined in Article 4;
 - 8.1.2. Shall be in good academic standing (with respect to the registrar's requirements);
 - 8.1.3. Shall be willing to commit to a full year of service beginning May 1st up until April 30th of the following year;
 - 8.1.4. Fulfilling the aims and purpose of the Society as outlined in Article 3;
 - 8.1.5. Shall the member be on co-op during the Fall and Winter semesters:
 - i. The Executive is present at all meetings and all events, unless they have a conflict with their co-op obligation;
 - ii. The Executive must fulfill all duties outlined for the role while meeting any co-op obligations.
 - 8.1.6. The President and Executive Vice-President shall run in elections as outlined in Article 11:
 - 8.1.7. All Vice President positions will be appointed by the elected President based on applications;
 - 8.1.8. All Vice President positions must be filled by May 30th of the election year;
 - 8.1.9. In addition to these, the President, Executive Vice-President, and Vice President of



Finance of the Odette Commerce Society must also: Be at least semester five as defined by the Office of the Registrar;

8.1.10. Have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member.

Article 9. Executive Positions

- 9.1. The Executive of the Society shall consist of:
 - 9.1.1. President
 - 9.1.2. Executive Vice-President
 - 9.1.3. Vice President of Human Resources & Administration
 - 9.1.4. Vice President of Social Affairs
 - 9.1.5. Vice President of Finance
 - 9.1.6. Vice President of Corporate Relations
 - 9.1.7. Vice President of Marketing & Technology
 - 9.1.8. Vice President of Student Leadership
 - 9.1.9. Vice President of Professional Development
 - 9.1.10. Vice President of Philanthropy

Article 10. Duties and Responsibilities of Executive Council Members

- 10.1. The President (Elected)
 - 10.1.1. Shall be a current Commerce Society Executive or councilmember;
 - 10.1.2. Shall ensure that all other council members are aware of and perform their respective duties during their term in office;
 - 10.1.3. Shall call and be the Chairperson of all Executive and general Society meetings;
 - 10.1.4. Shall serve as a non-voting member on the Executive council, as Chairperson, he/she shall only vote to break ties:
 - 10.1.5. Shall serve as the liason between faculty and other societies or student groups
 - 10.1.6. Shall uphold and enforce the Constitution;
 - 10.1.7. Shall have signing authority on all Society documents;
 - 10.1.8. In the event that any Vice President is absent or unable to fulfill their duties for any extended period shall either assume those responsibilities or appoint a suitable replacement;
 - 10.1.9. Shall ensure financial accountability and transparency by reviewing and approving all budgets and club funding decisions in collaboration with the Vice President of Finance;
 - 10.1.10. Shall be responsible for crisis management and conflict resolution within the Society, mediating disputes and ensuring professional conduct among members;
 - 10.1.11. Shall serve as the final authority on all official communications, major decisions and initiatives, ensuring alignment with the Society's mission, values, and strategic goals before their implementation or public release;
 - 10.1.12. Shall be one of the student representative on Faculty Committees, unless delegated otherwise;
 - 10.1.13. Shall oversee the daily operations of the Society.



10.2. The Executive Vice-President (Elected)

- 10.2.1. Shall be a current Commerce Society Executive or councilmember;
- 10.2.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.2.3. Shall be elected by the members of the Society;
- 10.2.4. Shall work closely with all Executives to ensure portfolios are running smoothly;
- 10.2.5. Shall have signing authority on all Society documents;
- 10.2.6. Shall fulfill the duties of the President in the event that the President is unable to perform such duties;
- 10.2.7. Shall assist the President in the daily operations of the Society.
- 10.2.8. Shall be responsible for conducting performance reviews on the Commerce Society Executive team
- 10.2.9. Shall be responsible for reviewing succession documents for each respective portfolio
- 10.2.10. Shall coordinate onboarding/orientation sessions for incoming executives
- 10.2.11. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.

10.3. Vice President of Social Affairs

- 10.3.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.3.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.3.3. Shall be responsible for organizing, coordinating, and overseeing all social events and activities for the Society;
- 10.3.4. Shall collaborate with other student clubs and organizations to coordinate joint events, ensuring the success of shared initiatives;
- 10.3.5. Shall manage event logistics, including securing venues, arranging vendors, volunteers, ;
- 10.3.6. Shall maintain the budget for all events and ensure financial resources are allocated efficiently and appropriately; must coordinate financial decisions with VP of Finance;
- 10.3.7. Shall work with the marketing team to promote events and encourage student participation, adequate time must be given for marketing requests;
- 10.3.8. Shall ensure that social events are inclusive, accessible, and align with the values and goals of the Society;
- 10.3.9. Shall gather feedback from participants post-event to assess success and improve future events.
- 10.3.10. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.

10.4 Vice President of Human Resources & Administration

- 10.4.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.4.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.4.3. Shall maintain all society documents and take meeting minutes with the exception of finances:
- 10.4.4. Shall be responsible for managing and regulating the elections and hiring process for the incoming team of the following year;
- 10.4.5. Shall be responsible for scheduling interviews and processing applications for full council members:
- 10.4.6. Shall serve as the liason between Commerce Society's subsidiary clubs;
- 10.4.7. Shall be responsible for the coordination and executive of EDI events and



- initiatives;
- 10.4.8. Shall administer performance reviews for the full Society council and provide ongoing coaching and feedback as needed;
- 10.4.9. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.
- 10.4.10. Shall attend monthly full council meetings and faculty council meetings.

10.5. Vice President of Finance

- 10.5.1. Shall be a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.5.2. Preferred to be specializing in Finance or Accounting;
- 10.5.3. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.5.4. Shall have signing authority on all Society documents;
- 10.5.5. Shall serve as the liaison between the Society and the University of Windsor Students' Alliance for all financial matters;
- 10.5.6. Shall be responsible for submitting all cheque requisitions, insurance forms, and other necessary financial documentation;
- 10.5.7. Shall track and record all credit card purchases and ensure proper documentation of receipts;
- 10.5.8. Shall communicate the Society's financial position to the Executive Council and provide regular updates on budgets and expenditures;
- 10.5.9. Shall create semester budgets in consultation with President and Executive Vice President;
- 10.5.10. Shall complete actual expense reports to ensure accurate financial planning and accountability;
- 10.5.11. Shall oversee and record all cash transactions to maintain proper financial records;
- 10.5.12. Shall be responsible for managing and auditing club funding to ensure compliance with financial policies and responsible allocation of resources.
- 10.5.13. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.

10.6. Vice President of Corporate Relations

- 10.6.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.6.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.6.3. Shall create a sponsorship package that will go out to all prospective supporters;
- 10.6.4. Shall consistently record and update sponsor contact list;
- 10.6.5. Shall serve as the liaison between the Society and external sponsors, ensuring effective communication and collaboration;
- 10.6.6. Shall work on securing sponsorships from local businesses
- 10.6.7. Shall be responsible for ensuring select sponsors receive committed recognition across all respective events;
- 10.6.8. Shall be responsible for coordinating and executing corporate events and logistics;
- 10.6.9. Shall focus on relationship management with sponsors to foster long-term partnerships;
- 10.6.10. Shall clearly communicate the value and benefits of sponsorship to potential and existing sponsors.
- 10.6.11. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.



- 10.7. Vice President of Marketing & Technology
 - 10.7.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive of council member;
 - 10.7.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
 - 10.7.3. Shall be responsible to lead a team of coordinators in social media, graphics, promotions;
 - 10.7.4. Preferred to be specializing in Marketing and/or fluent in graphics software;
 - 10.7.5. Shall oversee and maintain the Society's social media platforms, ensuring consistent branding, engagement, and content updates;
 - 10.7.6. Shall be responsible for the Society's communication, including managing email listservs, captions, and official announcements.
 - 10.7.7. Shall be responsible for the coordination and distribution of Society merchandise, including design, ordering, and sales;
 - 10.7.8. Shall manage and update the Society's website, ensuring accessibility, relevance, and up-to-date information;
 - 10.7.9. Shall be responsible for designing Corporate Sponsorship Package;
 - 10.7.10. Shall oversee all physical branding, including event signage, banners, and promotional materials:
 - 10.7.11. Shall collaborate with other executive members to create visually appealing and effective marketing materials for events and initiatives;
 - 10.7.12. Shall ensure all graphics and promotional content align with the Society's brand identity and objectives.
 - 10.7.13. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.

10.8. Vice President of Student Leadership

- 10.8.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.8.2. Shall serve as a voting member on the Executive council;
- 10.8.3. Shall be responsible in leading and maintaining the H.O.U.S.E. program;
- 10.8.4. Shall act as the liaison with the Odette Student Success Centre in the recruitment and selection of H.O.U.S.E. mentors and team leads.
- 10.8.5. Shall be responsible for overseeing and managing H.O.U.S.E. events and H.O.U.S.E. points targeted at first years;
- 10.8.6. Shall be responsible to ensure that mentors are in communication with their assigned mentees;
- 10.8.7. Shall maintain the budget for all first-year events and ensure financial resources are allocated efficiently and appropriately; must coordinate financial decisions with VP of Finance;
- 10.8.8. Shall work with the marketing team to promote first-year events and encourage student participation, adequate time must be given for marketing requests;
- 10.8.9. Shall actively seek to develop the H.O.U.S.E. program in order to maintain or increase engagement.
- 10.8.10. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.



10.9. Vice President of Professional Development

- 10.9.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.9.2. Shall serve as a voting member of the Executive Council;
- 10.9.3. Shall be responsible for organizing, coordinating, and overseeing all academic and professional development events, including workshops, panels, and sustainability initiatives;
- 10.9.4. Shall collaborate with faculty, industry professionals, and student organizations to provide meaningful professional development opportunities;
- 10.9.5. Shall manage event logistics, including securing venues, arranging guest speakers, coordinating volunteers, and ensuring execution of all events;
- 10.9.6. Shall maintain the budget for all professional development initiatives, ensuring financial resources are allocated efficiently and coordinating financial decisions with the Vice President of Finance;
- 10.9.7. Shall work with the marketing team to promote events and encourage student participation, ensuring adequate time is provided for marketing requests;
- 10.9.8. Shall gather feedback from participants post-event to assess success and improve future initiatives.
- 10.9.9. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.

10.10. Vice President of Philanthropy

- 10.10.1. Shall have been a past Commerce Society Executive or council member;
- 10.10.2. Shall serve as a voting member of the Executive Council;
- 10.10.3. Shall be responsible for organizing, coordinating, and overseeing all charity events and initiatives;
- 10.10.4. Shall serve as the liaison between all external charity organizations;
- 10.10.5. Shall be responsible for organizing Annual Odette Gala
- 10.10.6. Shall maintain the budget for all professional development initiatives, ensuring financial resources are allocated efficiently and coordinating financial decisions with the Vice President of Finance;
- 10.10.7. Shall work with the marketing team to promote events and encourage student participation, ensuring adequate time is provided for marketing requests;
- 10.10.8. Shall gather feedback from participants post-event to assess success and improve future initiatives.
- 10.10.9. Shall attend all weekly executive meetings and all monthly full council meetings.



Article 11. Elections and Procedures

- 11.1. The Society Executive shall assume office May 1st of the year in which they were elected/appointed and remain in office until April 30th of the following year;
- 11.2. The election shall be run by the Vice President of Human Resources & Administration or the UWSA Chief Recruiting Officer;
- 11.3. The outgoing team must call an election by March 30th of the year after they were elected;
- 11.4. Failure to do so will result in an intervention by the Executive Vice President and the rest of the Executive Team;
- 11.5. The Vice President of Human Resources & Administration or the UWSA Chief Returning Officer shall be empowered to settle all disputes;
- 11.6. Nominations close at least one week prior to election;
- 11.7. Each candidate is entitled to a scrutinizer who may be present at the counting of the ballots;
- 11.8. Any candidate may request a recount of the ballots of the election within 48 hours of the results. The request must be in writing and state:
 - 11.8.1. The candidate's name;
 - 11.8.2. Position for which the ballots are to be recounted and;
 - 11.8.3. A reason for the recount.
- 11.9. Elections shall be made by secret ballot, either paper based or electronically;
- 11.10. The time of the election shall be a period specified during a meeting of the Executives;
 - 11.10.1. Nominations shall be open for five school days;
 - 11.10.2. Campaigning shall occur for five school days;
 - 11.10.3. The election day must take place on the next school day after the campaign;
 - 11.10.4. There shall be no campaigning the days of the elections;
 - 11.10.5. Ballots must be kept for 96 hours;
- 11.11.If a candidate is running uncontested, they must satisfy a voting approval requirement of 70% in favour to successfully win the position.
 - 11.11.1. If a candidate does not meet the minimum 70% approval requirement, the position will remain vacant and will be filled through a by-election, taking place either before the end of the current term at the discretion of the current President and Vice President of Human Resources & Administration or UWSA Chief Returning Officer, or in October of the following term:
 - 11.11.2. If the President position remains vacant at the beginning of the elected term, the Executive Vice-President-elect will serve as acting President until the by-election in October;



- 11.11.3. If the Executive Vice-President position remains vacant at the beginning of the elected term, they may be appointed by the President from the incoming Executive Council; 11.11.4. If both elected positions remain vacant at the beginning of the elected term, the Vice President of Finance will serve as acting President until the by-election in October; 11.11.5. If in the instance of 11.9.4. and the Vice President of Finance is unable to serve, the acting President will be appointed by the Executive Council from the Executive Council of the elected year;
- 11.12. A by-election must be called if any of the elected positions are vacant by October 14th of the elected year;
 - 11.12.1. If an Executive wishes to run in the by-election, they must first submit a letter of resignation from their position to the Vice President of Administration & Human Resources;
 - 11.12.2. The vacant Executive position may be filled by appointment or hiring at the discretion of the President and Vice President of Administration & Human Resources;
 - 11.12.3. By-election procedures will be in accordance with Article 11 of this Constitution.
 - 11.12.4. If, in the instance there are more than three (3) candidates for an elected position, the candidates will be subjected to an interview and vetting process to be conducted by the current President and Vice President of Administration & Human Resources.
 - 11.12.5. All campaigning materials must be approved by the current President before publishing

Article 12. Impeachment and Executive Firing Procedures

- 12.1. The President or Executive Vice-President may be impeached under two (2) circumstances: 12.1. a. The membership as outlined in Article 4 of this Constitution may, by support of 300 students satisfying membership requirements, put forward a motion outlining just cause as listed in Article 12.1.1. to be voted on at a Special Executive Meeting as outlined in Article 12.1. b. The Society Council may, by a vote of at least ½ majority of voting members, impeach the President or Executive Vice-President of the Society with just cause;
 - 12.1.1. Example causes include (but are not limited to) the following:
 - 12.1.1. a. willful misconduct:
 - 12.1.1. b. willful misuse of funds (upon positive proof);
 - 12.1.1. c. willful neglect of their constitutional duties.
 - 12.1.2. In order to impeach the President or Executive Vice-President, the impeacher must contact an Executive. The Executive(s) will then call a Special Executive Meeting in which a) the situation will be addressed by the impeacher, b) the party for which the impeachment action is being brought against will be afforded the chance to defend themselves, and c) a vote will take place to determine course of action;
 - 12.1.3. The vote will be a secret ballot vote excluding the impeacher and the party for which the impeachment action is being brought against;
 - 12.1.4. If the President is relieved of their duties, the Executive Vice-President would, at that time, become the new President.
 - 12.1.5. If the Executive Vice-President is relieved of their duties prior to October 14th by-election will take place to fill the vacant position(s), and the President will fulfill



the duties in the interim;

- 12.1.6. If the Executive Vice-President is relieved of their duties past October 14th, the replacement may be appointed by the President from the current Executive Council.
- 12.2. A Society Executive may be fired by unanimous decision of the President, Executive Vice-President, and the Vice President of Administration & Human Resources with just cause;
 - 12.2.1. Example causes include (but are not limited to) the following:
 - 12.2.1. a. willful misconduct;
 - 12.2.1. b. willful misuse of funds (upon positive proof);
 - 12.2.1. c. willful neglect of their constitutional duties;
 - 12.2.2. In the event an Executive of the Society provides just cause for termination, due process must be followed as outlined below:
 - 12.2.2. a. Verbal or written warning from President or Vice President of Administration & Human Resources;
 - 12.2.2. b. A second meeting and warning with the President and Vice President of Administration & Human Resources;
 - 12.2.2. c. Termination of the Executive may follow if the issues persist.



Article 13. Council Member Firing Procedure

- 13.1. All Full Council members are required to read and sign the membership contract upon being hired.
- 13.2. Full Society performance reviews must be overseen by the Vice President of Human Resources and Administration, and will be conducted by respective portfolios.
- 13.3. If a Council member is not fulfilling their duties, the respective Vice President shall conduct a meeting to address concerns and review the member's performance, providing feedback and necessary corrective actions.
- 13.4. If this meeting does not cause any changes during a set probationary period, the respective Vice-President, Vice President of Administration & Human Resources, or President, may fire a member of the Council of the Odette Commerce Society with just cause;
 - 13.4.1. Example causes include (but are not limited to) the following:
 - 13.4.1.a. willful misconduct;
 - 13.4.1.b. willful misuse of funds (upon positive proof);
 - 13.3.1. c. willful neglect of their constitutional duties.
- 13.5. All Society meetings and events are mandatory for all Council members. Constant absenteeism without just cause may result in the termination of said member.

Article 14. Member Resignation

- 14.1. Presidential Resignation
 - 14.1.1. In case of a Presidential Resignation, that position will be filled by the Executive Vice-President until the end of the fiscal year;
 - 14.1.2. At this time, the new President will also appoint a new Executive Vice-President;
- 14.2. Executive Vice-President Resignation
 - 14.2.1. In case of an Executive Vice-President Resignation prior to October 14th, a by-election will be held to fill the vacant position(s), in accordance with Article 11, and the President will fulfill the duties in the interim;
- 14.3. Executive Resignation
 - 14.3.1. In case of an Executive Resignation, that position must be filled by a General Member of that Executive's portfolio at the President's discretion;
 - 14.3.2. In the case that there are no members of the portfolio willing or able to take the position, the President may appoint an able Council member from another portfolio;
 - 14.3.3. The appointment must be ratified by a ½ majority vote at the next Executive meeting.
- 14.4. General Member Resignation
 - 14.4.1. In the case of a General Member Resignation, a new member will be hired to fill the



vacant position until the end of term;

14.4.2. In the case of a General Member resignation, if the position is not vital (to be left to the discretion of the resigned member's Executive) the position shall be left vacant.

Article 15. Conference and Competition Funding Policy

- 15.1. The Society will designate funds each year for Conference and Competition Funding for Society members;
 - 15.1.1. A predetermined fund must be allocated from the budget to conferences and competitions. This fund will be decided by the President, Executive Vice-President, and Vice President of Finance;
 - 15.1.2. Students eligible for the fund must be members of the Society in accordance with Article 4 of this Constitution;
 - 15.1.3. The Society may fund Odette accredited clubs and business students up to 50% 100% of delegate fees and 50% 100% of travel fees at an amount to be determined by the Finance Committee as outlined in Article 15.3;
 - 15.1.4. All business students or Odette accredited clubs interested in attending a conference or competition must be approved two (2) weeks prior to the conference or competition;
 - 15.1.5. All business students and Odette accredited clubs must provide proof of the conference or competition, a budget, and a 150-250 word description as to how it will benefit the Odette School of Business and its students;
 - 15.1.6. All business students and Odette accredited clubs must have prior approval by the Finance Committee and must provide all receipts in order to be reimbursed;
- 15.2. The Society may fund up to 100% of travel fees and 100% of delegate fees for the National Business School Conference and Roundtable attended by Society Executives.
- 15.3. The Finance Committee must consist of the Vice President of Finance, the President, and the finance team.

Article 16. Club Funding

- 16.1. All accredited Odette School of Business clubs are entitled to receive funds on a request-based system which is voted and agreed upon by the Finance Committee, as outlined in Article 15.3.;
 - 16.1.1. All requests under \$1000 CAD, or as determined by UWSA, shall be approved or disapproved by the Finance team, under their discretion;
 - 16.1.2. Any funding requests over \$1000 CAD, or as determined by UWSA, must be approved by the Executive team and Finance team;
 - 16.1.3. All clubs requesting funding must submit a detailed budget to VP-Finance at the beginning of the semester;
 - 16.1.4. The Finance team, in collaboration with the Executive team, shall allocate fees in alignment with the Society's goals and objectives;
 - 16.1.5. The Odette Commerce Society retains the right to adjust all funding requests as seen fit and reject funding for any reason;
 - 16.1.6. All Odette clubs will receive up to \$2000 a semester for their club spending to assist with purchases like merch, events, team bondings, and conferences;



- 16.1.7. All expenses must be approved by the VP Finance and President prior to purchase;
- 16.1.8. Any unused funds will be returned to the Society on a semester basis, failure to do so may result inelgibility for funding the following semester;
- 16.1.9. All Odette clubs must complete audit forms on a monthly basis or per VP Finance request.

Article 17. Faculty Advisor

- 17.1. A faculty advisor shall be available for regular consultation with the Society Executives, provided the advisor is acceptable to a majority of the Executives;
- 17.2. A faculty advisor is chosen every fiscal year and is open to all fulltime Odette Professors

Article 18. Society Constitution

- 18.1. Amendments:
 - 18.1.1. Proposed amendments must be submitted to the Society Executives in writing at least 7 days prior to a meeting called specifically for that purpose;
 - 18.1.2. An amendment of this constitution shall be deemed to have been adopted by the Society if it receives a ²/₃ majority of the eligible Executive present at a meeting duly called for that purpose;
 - 18.1.3. Constitution amendments must be resolved during the special meeting;
- 18.2. A copy of this Constitution shall be given to every member of the Executive team and shall be on file with the Office of the Dean and, on request, shall be open to any member of the Society.

Article 19. Club Ratification

- 19.1. All prospective Commerce Society clubs must satisfy the following requirements in order to be ratified:
 - 19.1.1. Must be ratified under the UWSA,
 - 19.1.2. Must have been started by an Odette student;
- 19.2. All executive team members of clubs under the Commerce Society must be students enrolled in the Bachelor of Commerce program, including double majors. No non-business students are permitted in executive roles, ensuring the leadership aligns with the goals of the Commerce Society.
- 19.3. The general members of each club must be comprised of at least two-thirds (2/3) business students. This is to ensure that the club's general activities and focus remain aligned with the interests and academic pursuits of business students.



19.4.	All Commerce Soc	eiety	Clubs must be	voted on by	the Executive	e team or Ful	l Council, v	where a
	² / ₃ quorum majority	y is 1	oresent.					

19.5.	All Commerce Society Clubs must be voted upon by the full council and receive a ² / ₃ quorum
	majority.

